
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF LAKE ST CROIX BEACH 
16455 20th STREET SOUTH 

WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
 

September 19, 2016 
 

AGENDA 
 

7:00 P.M. 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. APPROVE AGENDA 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA Roll Call Vote.  (Consent Agenda items, listed on the following page, 

are defined as routine business, not requiring discussion and approved by a roll call vote.  
Councilmembers may elect to pull a Consent Agenda item(s) for discussion and/or separate 
action)  

 

5. OPEN COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Visitors may share their comments or concerns on any issue that is a responsibility or function of 
the City Council of Lake St. Croix Beach, not an issue as listed on this agenda.  Persons who 
wish to address the City Council must fill out a comment card before the meeting begins and give 
it to the City Clerk or City staff.  The mayor will ask you to come to the podium, state your name 
and address, and present your comments.  Your presentation will be limited to no more than 3 
minutes.  The mayor reserves the right to limit an individual’s presentation if it becomes 
redundant, repetitive, overly argumentative, or if it is not relevant to an issue that is part of the 
City Council’s responsibilities.  The mayor may also limit the number of individual 
presentations. 

 

 PUBLIC COMMENTS (Agenda Items) 
Visitors may share their comments or concerns on any agenda item listed that is a responsibility 
or function of the City Council of Lake St. Croix Beach.  Persons who wish to address the City 
Council must fill out a comment card before the meeting begins and give it to the City Clerk or 
City staff.  The mayor will ask you to come to the podium, state your name and address, and 
present your comments.  Your presentation will be limited to no more than 3 minutes.  The 
mayor reserves the right to limit an individual’s presentation if it becomes redundant, repetitive, 
overly argumentative, or if it is not relevant to an issue that is part of the City Council’s 
responsibilities.  The mayor may also limit the number of individual presentations. 

 

6. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORTS 
 A. Law Enforcement 
 B. Emergency Response and Fire 

• Kevin Wall, Fire Dept. Relief Association 
 C. Animal Control 
 

7. CITY STAFF REPORTS  
              A.      City Engineer Parotti 
              B.      City Attorney Sandstrom 
 1. “Granny Pod” Opt-Out 
 2.   Minnesota Government Access 



 

 2 

  
 C.      City Clerk-Administrator Schuler 
  

1. Candidate Forum 
2. Update on Afton Septic 
3. Update on Lower St. Croix Valley Workshop 
4. Update on Bluff Project  
5. Matching Grant – Playground Equipment 
6. Approval of Park Committee Chairperson 
7. Questions from Parks Board 
8. Treasurer’s Report 

 
• September Claims: $41,904.86 with check numbers 17308 through 17332 

 
D.   Deputy Clerk Andrew Brunick 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS 

A.  Building Inspector Proposals 
B.  Jacobs Variance 
C.  Fat Tire Trike CUP and IUP 

• Resolution 2016-13 – Granting a CUP as request by Joe Bush to operate 
businesses at 1980 Quasar Avenue South. 

D.  Preliminary Levy 
 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
      A. City Clerk-Administrator Performance Review 

 

10. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 

11. COUNCIL/STAFF REPORTS 
A.   Councilmember Brown 

• Cable Commission 
B.   Councilmember Kline 
C.   Councilmember Reiter 

• Environmental Advisory Board 
D. Councilmember Unker  

• Afton Wastewater treatment System 
E. Mayor McCarthy 

• Veterans memorial 
• Sentence -To- Serve (STS) 
• Planning Commission 
• Middle St Croix Water Management Organization 
• Lower St Croix Valley Partnership Team  

  

12. ADJOURNMENT 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
4.    CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

A. Minutes from the August 15, 2016 City Council Meeting. 
 





REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF LAKE ST CROIX BEACH 

16455 20th STREET SOUTH 
WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

August 15, 2016 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Tom McCarthy, Charles W. Brown, Michelle Kline, Cindie 
Reiter, Jim Unker 

STAFF PRESENT: John Parotti, Kevin Sandstrom, Andrew Brunick, Sue 
Schuler 

OTHERS PRESENT: Dolly Burns, Becky Brewster, Bill Glampe, JP Armstrong, 
James Langenberger, Andrew Langenberger, Jo Hull 

CALL TO ORDER by Mayor McCarthy at 7:05 p.m. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE was said. 

APPROVE AGENDA Agenda item 3. 

Councilmember Brown requested that item 10 to item 6B. Councilmember Reiter requested that 
“City Clerk-Administrator Performance Appraisal” be added as 9A. 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER BROWN, SECONDED BY 
COUNCILMEMBER REITER, TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AS AMENDED.  
MOTION PASSED, 5 AYES, 0 NAYS. 

CONSENT AGENDA  Agenda item 4. 

Councilmember Reiter requested that the July 18, 2016 council meeting minutes be pulled from 
the consent agenda and moved to 9B. 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER REITER, SECONDED BY MAYOR 
MCCARTHY, TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA AS AMENDED.  THE 
FOLLOWING ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN:  UNKER – AYE, KLINE – 
AYE, BROWN – AYE, REITER – AYE, MCCARTHY – AYE. 

OPEN COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC Agenda item 5. 

Jim Golden, 1920 Quarry Avenue South, requested that people send their 
comments in for the Afton Wastewater Treatment Project during the federal comment 
period that just opened up to try and stop the project. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (Agenda Items) 

No comments from the public. 

PUBLIC SAFETY REPORTS 



 

 2 

 
Law Enforcement 
 
Deputy Laura Jackson introduced herself as the new deputy for the lower St. Croix Valley. She 
reported 56 calls in July and went on to talk about some of the more common calls she’s 
received. Deputy Jackson also provided an update on the investigation regarding a shooting that 
occurred in LSCB recently. 
 
Neighborhood Watch (Schuler) 
 
Clerk-Admin. Schuler reported that residents have expressed an interest in forming a 
neighborhood watch to try and deter undesirable activity down at the public beach. 
 
Deputy Jackson said that she will be working with Deputy Sullivan on community initiatives like 
that.  
 
Emergency Response and Fire 
 
Chris Peterson, Fire Chief, reported 43 calls, 6 of which were in LSCB in July.  
 
Kevin Wald, President of the Lower St. Croix Valley Firefighters’ Relief Association, presented 
their annual audit for fiscal year 2015.  
 
Animal Control 
 
0 calls, 0 warning letters sent, 1 lost dog, 2 lost cats, a fainting goat, and 1 dog found in July.  
 
 

CITY STAFF REPORTS  
  
City Engineer Parotti 
 
 Street Patching Update 
 

City Engineer Parotti reported that he met with the mayor and the contractor down 
at the streets that will be redone next year to see if any patching would be needed in the 
meantime. Engineer Parotti stated that the Council will be provided a quote for “dump 
and run” patching if these streets require it.   

 
City Engineer Parotti reported that the spray emulsion patching is about two thirds 

completed and expect to finish early next week.  
 
 Culvert Televising – Riviera Avenue Levy 
 
 City Engineer Parotti reported that he got the contract back from the contractor last week 
and it is ready for the mayor and administrator’s signature. City Engineer Parotti reported that the 
contractor that they could get that work done in the next couple of weeks.  
 
 River Elevation 



 

 3 

 
 City Engineer Parotti reported that the river elevation peaked at 680.5 on Saturday or 
Sunday and the current elevation is roughly 679.0.  
 
City Attorney Sandstrom 
 
 Nothing to present. 
 
City Clerk-Administrator Schuler 
 
 Well Testing on Quant Avenue 
 
  Clerk-Admin. Schuler proposed that the council approve testing the water at 4 
residences on Quant Avenue to provide them with a baseline to help them better identify 
contamination in the future. Clerk-Admin. Schuler also brought up the option of working with 
Afton to put these residences on city water.  
 
  Councilmember Reiter stated that she thought it should be the responsibility of the 
residents to get their wells tested.  
 
  Councilmember Unker stated that he thought everyone should be encouraged to 
get their wells tested not just these 4 residents on Quant Avenue.  
 
  Jim Golden, 1920 Quarry Avenue South, again voiced his opposition to the Afton 
Septic project. City Attorney Sandstrom stated that he believed the city did everything it could to 
try and stop the project.  
 
  Jim Golden, 1920 Quarry Avenue South, then proposed having the City Attorney 
draft a letter on behalf of the city to submit during the Federal comment period protesting the 
Afton Septic project.  
 

Councilmember Reiter asked for comment from City Attorney Sandstrom. City Attorney 
Sandstrom stated that he is fine with revising a previous letter that was sent in opposition to the 
Afton Septic project and asked that the council provide a budget limit for this. City Attorney 
Sandstrom stated that he could draft the letter for under $500.00. 
 

Mayor McCarthy stated that he didn’t think the city should spend any more money on 
opposing the Afton Septic project. 
 

City Attorney Sandstrom stated that he didn’t believe the city should be getting involved 
in recommending well testing for residents. 
 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER UNKER, SECONDED BY 
COUNCILMEMBER REITER, TO DIRECT THE CITY ATTORNEY TO 
REVISIT THE ORIGINAL LETTER SENT IN OPPOSITION TO THE AFTON 
SEPTIC SYSTEM PROJECT AND UPDATE AS NECESSARY AND SUBMIT TO 
THE MINNESOTA POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY FOR THE COMMENT 
PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 1, 2016, NOT TO EXCEED OF $500.  MOTION 
PASSED, 5 AYES, 0 NAYS. 

 
 Building Inspection Services 
 



 

 4 

  Clerk-Admin. Schuler stated that the City of Bayport is using their 60 day “opt 
out” of the contract for building inspection services they have with LSCB. Clerk-Admin. Schuler 
then stated that MNSpect will be presenting an offer to contract directly with the city for building 
inspection services. Clerk-Admin. Schuler recommended contracting with an individual at an 
hourly rate that could be in the office 2 to 3 days a week. This would cut down costs because the 
inspector would not be getting a percentage of the permit cost, just an hourly rate. Clerk-Admin. 
Schuler stated that she would have more next meeting on this.  
 
 Proposed Address Change 
 
  Clerk-Admin. Schuler stated that property in question is 16561 14th Street South. 
Washington County is suggesting that the address be changed to 14656 Queens Avenue South 
which would make it easier for emergency responders. Clerk-Admin. Schuler proposed sending 
out a letter to the assessor’s office, Xcel Energy, Comcast, CenturyLink, Waste Management, the 
water department, Washington County GIS, and the postal service notifying them of the address 
change and reasons for the change. Clerk-Admin. Schuler also proposed sending a letter to the 
homeowner notifying them of what has been done for them in regard to the address change.  
  

MOTION BY MAYOR MCCARTHY, SECONDED BY COUNCILMEMBER 
BROWN, TO APPROVE AN ADDRESS CHANGE AT 16561 14TH STREET 
SOUTH TO 14656 QUEENS AVENUE SOUTH AND LETTERS NOTIFYING 
THE HOMEOWNER, WASHINGTON COUNTY, AND UTILITIES.  MOTION 
PASSED, 5 AYES, 0 NAYS. 

  
 League of Women Voters Study 
 
  Clerk-Admin. Schuler presented a study put out by the League of Women Voters 
concerning openness in government.  
 
  Councilmember Reiter asked if Mayor McCarthy, liaison to the fire dept., would 
bring a copy of this study to them and encourage them to start posting their meetings.  
 

August Claims: $63,119.31 
 
Clerk-Admin. Schuler reported that check number 17283 in the amount of $3,757.66 had 

been pulled because of double payment. The updated claims amount is $59,361.65. 
 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER REITER, SECONDED BY 
COUNCILMEMBER BROWN, TO APPROVE CHECK NUMBER 17270 
THROUGH 17303 IN THE AMOUNT OF $59,361.65. MOTION PASSED, 5 AYES, 
0 NAYS. 
 

Deputy Clerk Andrew Brunick 
 

Deputy Clerk Brunick requested a motion for $150.00 in startup cash to be used at the 
Fall Cleanup.  
 

MOTION BY MAYOR MCCARTHY, SECONDED BY COUNCILMEMBER 
KLINE, TO APPROVE $150 IN STARTUP CASH TO BE USED AT THE FALL 
CLEANUP EVENT ON SEPTEMBER 17, 2016. MOTION PASSED, 5 AYES, 0 
NAYS. 

 
 Street Signs Update 
 



 

 5 

  Deputy Clerk Brunick stated that he has been working with the City of 
Maplewood on getting street signs ordered. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

Shoreland/Park Security (Reiter) 
 
Councilmember Reiter stated that some people she has talked to want Shoreline 
Park to be private and it is her understanding that this is not possible since the city 
is a public entity and the city has used federal dollars along Shoreline Park. 
Councilmember Reiter then stated that she was in favor of starting up a 
“neighborhood watch” as an effort to reduce crime in Shoreline Park and not in 
favor of the city hiring security to patrol the park.  
 

Council Meeting Consent Agenda Process (Reiter) 
 
 Councilmember Reiter reminded the council that if they want to amend anything 

on the consent agenda, they need to pull it from the consent agenda first.  
 
New Candidates Bio Format – Newsletter (Reiter) 
 
 Councilmember Reiter requested that the council allow candidates to put a half 

page bio in the newsletter.  
 
MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER REITER, SECONDED BY MAYOR 
MCCARTHY, TO APPROVE ALLOWING CANDIDATES TO INCLUDE HALF 
PAGE BIOGRAPHIES IN THE CITY NEWSLETTER. MOTION PASSED, 5 
AYES, 0 NAYS. 

 
Public Hearing – Wald Variance Recommendation 
 

Resolution 2016-12 – Granting Variances as Requested by David and Carol Wald to 
Construct Addition onto Home at 1640 Riviera Avenue South. 
 
 Clerk-Admin. Schuler presented on the application submitted by David and Carol 
Wald for an addition on to the residence at 1640 Riviera Avenue South.  
 
 Councilmember Unker questioned where the “practical difficulty” was in the 
application. 
 
 Councilmember Brown expressed concern that he had not seen anything on this 
project prior to the meeting.  
 
MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER REITER, SECONDED BY MAYOR 
MCCARTHY, TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 2016-12 GRANTING VARIANCES 
AS REQUESTED BY DAVID AND CAROL WALD TO CONSTRUCT 
ADDITION ONTO HOME AT 1640 RIVIERA AVENUE SOUTH WITH THE 
RECOMMENDED CHANGES FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR. THE 



 

 6 

FOLLOWING ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN:  UNKER – AYE, KLINE – 
AYE, BROWN – AYE, REITER – AYE, MCCARTHY – AYE. 
 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
City Clerk-Admin. Performance Appraisal 
 
 Councilmember Reiter proposed to either give Clerk-Admin. Schuler a 

performance appraisal at the September Council meeting or give her a 3% raise. 
 City Attorney Sandstrom recommended a formal performance evaluation to 

provide feedback and documentation. The council agreed to individually complete 
a performance appraisal before the next council meeting.  

 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

Minutes of July 18, 2016 City Council Meeting 
 

Councilmember Reiter requested some changes to the July 18, 2016 City 
Council Meeting Minutes. Clerk-Admin. Schuler asked for clarification on the 
style and level of detail the council would like in the meeting minutes.  
 

City Attorney Sandstrom stated that minutes could not be amended after 
they have been approved. 

 

COUNCIL/STAFF REPORTS 
  

Councilmember Brown 
 
 Nothing to report. 

 
Councilmember Kline 

 
 Nothing to report. 
 

Councilmember Reiter 
 
 Councilmember Reiter stated that she went to the Planning Commission and 

Parks Board meetings. 
 
Councilmember Unker  

 
Nothing to report. 

 
 
 
Mayor McCarthy 

 
Mayor McCarthy reported that he attended the following meetings; Planning 

Commission, Middle St Croix Water Management Organization, Lower St Croix Valley 
Partnership Team  



 

 7 

  

ADJOURNMENT 
 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER BROWN, SECONDED BY 
COUNCILMEMBER REITER, TO ADJOURN THE MEETING. MOTION 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 





AGN Date 
Citation 

Number 
Badge 

Officer 

Name 

Citation 

Type 
Warning 

Street 

Name 
City Literal Desc 

WCSO 
2016-

08-29 
820025624201 160 K. Manis Citation N 

19TH 

ST S  

Lake St. 

Croix 

Beach 

MOV-Passing-Prohibited by Signs-

No Passing Zone 

WCSO 
2016-

08-22 
820012623501 176 

N. 

Sullivan 
Citation N 

18TH 

ST S  

Lake St. 

Croix 

Beach 

CRIM-ASSAULT-5TH DEGREE-

INFLICT OR ATTEMPT BODILY 

HARM 

 



file:///lscbsrv1/LSCB%20shared/Council%20Meetings%20and%20Agendas/2016/2016%20Council%20Packets/9-19-16/ICR%20Report.txt[9/16/2016 5:07:58 PM]

 PRT CONTRACT ICR REPORT                                   TALEE      Page     1
                                                                9/01/16  7:37:47
                       Washington County Sheriff's Office
                               CONTRACT ICR's
                 Contract Report for LAKE ST CROIX BEACH
                         For the Period  8/01/16  To  8/31/16

  Date     Time       ICR #  ID#  Street Name     Complaint

  8/02/16 13:59:57 116028488 0077 QUINLAN AV      CHECK WELFARE   **21 >>>>>>>>>
  8/02/16 16:07:45 116028524 0077 18TH ST         JUVENILE COMPLAINT
  8/02/16 23:08:07 116028566 1281 RIVER FRONT PAR NIGHT TO UNITE
  8/04/16  2:50:05 116028730 0150 RIVIERA AV      SHOTS FIRED/PROPERTY DAMAGE
  8/04/16  2:50:05 116501990 0100 RIVIERA AV      AOA/SHOTS FIRED/PROPERTY DAMAG
  8/04/16 10:47:28 116028779 0132 RIVIERA AV      SEARCH WARRANT
  8/04/16 21:15:03 116028874 0091 RIVIERA AV      SUSPICIOUS ACTIVITY
  8/05/16 13:34:45 116028969      17TH ST         WARRANT / WCCS / CR152876
  8/05/16 16:28:30 116029004 1281 RIVIERA AV      KNOCK & TALK
  8/05/16 17:34:56 116029015 0084 17TH ST         A & D ORDER INFORMATION
  8/05/16 18:33:54 116029023 1281 20TH ST         MEDICAL - LEVEL 1
  8/05/16 23:15:27 116029051 0142 RIVIERA AV      POSSIBLE BURGLARY
  8/06/16 18:17:30 116029137 0093 RIVIERA AV      THREATS REPORT
  8/07/16 15:40:16 116029244 1253 ST CROIX RIVER  WATERCRAFT VIOLATION WARNING T
  8/08/16 15:48:38 116029371 0174 UPPER 22ND ST   MEDICAL   LEVEL 3
  8/08/16 16:40:07 116029387 0192 SAINT CROIX TR  GAS DRIVE OFF
  8/09/16  6:48:44 116029456 0130 REDWING AV      MEDICAL/SUICIDAL MALE LEVEL 1
  8/09/16 15:36:15 116029533 0130 QUINLAN AV CT   SUSPICIOUS ACTIVITY
  8/09/16 19:13:16 116029560 0076 RIVIERA AV      PARKING COMPLAINT
  8/10/16  0:00:18 116029590 1264 QUINLAN AV      SUSPICOUS ACTIVITY
  8/10/16  7:45:42 116029615 0160 18TH ST         FOUND DOG
  8/10/16  9:20:18 116029625 0160 RACINE AV       PUBLIC ASSIST
  8/10/16 14:09:27 116029670 0160 RAMADA AV       INFORMATION/IRS SCAMS
  8/10/16 17:45:51 116029698 0176 20TH ST         BREAK IN REPORT
  8/10/16 19:39:51 116029714 0113 17TH ST         GUN INCIDENT/SHOOTING
  8/10/16 19:39:51 116502038 0090 17TH ST         AOA/GUN INCIDENT
  8/10/16 19:40:27 116029715 0084 15TH ST         OFFICER INFORMATION      *RSTK
  8/10/16 22:10:09 116029737 1208 QUEBEC AV       POWER LINES DOWN
  8/11/16  9:03:04 116029776 0068 19TH ST         PARKING COMPLAINT
  8/11/16 15:18:37 116029854 0113 RIVIERA AV      DRUG ACTIVITY
  8/11/16 15:46:51 116029857 0088 QUARRY AV       CIVIL QUESTIONS  *RSTK CALL CO
  8/12/16  7:45:05 116029919 0088 QUEENS AV       JUV RUNAWAY
  8/12/16 16:09:19 116030011 0095 QUEBEC AV       911 OPEN LINE
  8/13/16 20:34:24 116030143 0093 SAINT CROIX TR  INTOXICATED MALE
  8/15/16  9:37:14 116030327      RIVIERA AV      RECEIPT# 160003906
  8/15/16 18:43:13 116030408 0174 20TH ST         LAKE ST CROIX BEACH CITY COUNC
  8/15/16 22:48:08 116030430 0174 RIVIERA AV      OFFICER INFORMATION
  8/15/16 22:59:32 116030432 1264 17TH ST         ASSIST
  8/16/16  1:48:38 116030442 1264 17TH ST         SUSPICIOUS ACTIVITY
  8/16/16 17:26:52 116030557 0130 13TH ST         MEDICAL LEVEL 1
  8/17/16  8:53:22 116030617 0130 QUASAR CT       VEH LOCKOUT
  8/18/16  3:54:14 116030736 0070 RIVIERA AV      SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE
  8/18/16  8:24:05 116030748 0160 RIVIERA AV      INFORMATION/IRS SCAM
  8/18/16 19:39:45 116030838 0176 SAINT CROIX TR  PUBLIC ASSIST



file:///lscbsrv1/LSCB%20shared/Council%20Meetings%20and%20Agendas/2016/2016%20Council%20Packets/9-19-16/ICR%20Report.txt[9/16/2016 5:07:58 PM]

  8/19/16 20:21:49 116031014 0176 QUANT AV        PARKING CONCERN
  8/21/16 22:00:23 116031245 0076 18TH ST         ASSAULT REPORT    **RSTK 176 2
  8/22/16  2:40:12 116031258 0067 UPPER 17TH ST   UNK SITUATION **RESTACK/AMB RO
  8/22/16 12:20:00 116031318 0077 18TH ST         DAMAGE TO PROPERTY
  8/23/16 19:07:31 116031534 0174 20TH ST         FOUND BIKE
  8/24/16 17:10:11 116031675 0082 18TH ST         MISSING DOG
  8/25/16 15:07:02 116031811      QUINLAN AVE     RECEIPT# 160004108
  8/29/16 10:59:32 116032270 0088 QUEBEC AV       VEHICLE LOCKOUT
 PRT CONTRACT ICR REPORT                                   TALEE      Page     2
                                                                9/01/16  7:37:47
                       Washington County Sheriff's Office
                               CONTRACT ICR's
                 Contract Report for LAKE ST CROIX BEACH
                         For the Period  8/01/16  To  8/31/16

  Date     Time       ICR #  ID#  Street Name     Complaint

  8/29/16 11:45:48 116032281 0160 19TH ST         TRAFFIC
  8/29/16 13:29:38 116032307 0088 QUEBEC AV       WINDOW ALARM
  8/30/16 17:14:32 116032493 0091 18TH ST         FRAUD REPORT
  8/30/16 17:30:01 116032496 0091 SAINT CROIX TR  TRESSPASSING     *CALL COMP WI

 Total ICRs Processed:     56

 ** END OF REPORT **

























































 1 

PARTNERSHIP TEAM 

LOWER ST. CROIX MANAGEMENT COMMISSION  

MINUTES OF MEETING #60 

May 31, 2016 

 

Oak Park Heights City Hall, Oak Park Heights, Minnesota 

 

1.   Roll call – Introductions – Sign-in 

The meeting was called to order by Buck Malick at 7:05 p.m.  Present: Buck Malick, St. 

Croix County and St. Croix Scenic Coalition; David Beaudet, Sierra Club; Jan Cuccia, 

Town of Troy; Jen Sorensen, MN DNR; Bill Palmquist, City of Afton; Richard Bend, City 

of Afton; Natalie Warren, St. Croix River Association; and Steve Ebner, West Lakeland 

Township.  Also present: Mike Isensee, Middle St. Croix Watershed Management 

Organization. 

 

2.  Approval of Minutes of March 29, 2016 

Beaudet, seconded by Palmquist, moved to approve the Minutes.  Motion carried.  

 

3. Land Use Reviews 

 

A. Dolan, Pierce County, Reviewer Palmquist: Palmquist provided his review report 

and showed a map and photos.  Review report attached hereto and incorporated into 

the Minutes. 

 

4.  Mike Isensee, Middle St. Croix Watershed Organization, Case Review Project  

Isensee reported that there were ten appointees to a board that helped drive the work that the 

Middle St. Croix Watershed Management Organization does.  He stated that submittals 

were required and reviewed by the board and that they had no enforcement authority but 

were a technical committee to the communities.  Isensee reported that in July 2015 they had 

a discussion on the challenge of riverway rules, ordinances, and the variance process and 

the inconsistences, and they questioned if there was a way to develop a process to improve 

transparency and consistency.  He stated that one solution they created was to designate one 

person who represented all communities and allow the Middle St. Croix Watershed 

Management Organization to do a technical review of variance requests and report back.  

He stated that one designated representative would look at variances that violate the 

riverway ordinances and provide assistance towards a solution.  Isensee reported that they 

discussed the importance of getting a handle on what had happened with variances in the 

past and review which have passed with inconsistences.  He stated they had been working 

with Natalie Warren on the work that she had been doing with the St. Croix River 

Association.  Malick asked if there would be a fee for service.  Isensee responded that there 

would have to be an application fee and process.  He stated that designated representative 

would have to be a person who was an expert in riverway ordinances and variances so City 

staff did not need to be experts.  He said the watershed management organization would 

develop framework and meet with communities one-on-one, and Warren would be working 

with him to update handouts on riverway rules.  Beaudet added that he hoped one of the 

application requirements would be submittal of a recent survey. 



 2 

 

5. General Riverway Announcements/Adjourn 

Palmquist, seconded by Beaudet, moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:23 p.m.  Motion 

carried. 

 



1.  Applicant name/address: Todd Dolan & Renee Clement, N6319 1323rd Street, Prescott, WI 
54021, Tax Parcel No. 002--1122-0800, Lot 2 Section 3, T26N, R20W, Town of Clifton

2.  Local government decision-maker: Pierce County

3.  Project description: Stairway

4.  Type of permit(s) - Variances(s) or Conditional/Special Use Permit(s)- Standards in Ordinance/
Requested deviation:  CUP

5.  Did applicant submit adequate material to enable the local government to make a sound 
decision?  Yes. Additionally on 2-24-2016, staff met the applicant on-site to review the 
proposed stairway location and application

6.  Did the local government notify DNR in the proper time frame and include appropriate 
application materials? Yes

7.  Did the local government hold a proper hearing (if required)? Yes When? March 24, 2016

8. Did the local government document its decision with appropriate findings, etc. Yes, however 
findings limited to referencing criteria for stairways and conditional use procedures.  If a 
hardship was found, what was it?  None Required. If variances were granted, what were they 
and were they justified? No variances were required.

9.  Did the DNR respond in the appropriate time frame? Yes What were DNR comments?  DNR 
referenced Section §239-10 L of the Pierce County St. Croix Riverway Zoning Ordinance, 
noting if all conditions cannot be met the department recommends denial.  DNR also 
recommended ensuring stairway meets all floodplain zoning requirements.

10.  What was the outcome? Approved If variances or permits were denied, why?  N/A When? 
March 24, 2016

11.   Is the outcome consistent with protection of the river's outstandingly remarkable values 
(scenic, recreational, geologic)?  Current guidelines provide for stairway access for property 
owners who require it to access the river contingent on meeting requirements of §239-10 L.  
How is visibility from the river affected?  Unknown. Approval contingent on adequate screening 
within 5 years of construction, however staff correspondence states “The Board decided that 
additional vegetation was not needed for the structure to be visually inconspicuous.” If any 
conditions or mitigation are required, what are they and how effective will they be? Unknown due 
to conflicting information on vegetative screening.

12.  Reviewer, date: Palmquist 05/12/2016



Park Commission Subcommittees 2016 

 

 

 

City Council 

 

Tom McCarthy, Mayor 

Cindie Reiter 

Jim Unker 

Charles Brown 

Michelle Kline 

 

Park Commission 

Tom Runge (Chair) 

Colter Manley 

Nick Welsch 

Bill Glampe 

Nick Welsh  

                                                                                                                 Park Technical Committee 

This sub-committee assists 

 the Park Commission with day-to-day 

 work by providing site reviews,  mooring 

 and docking facility inspections,  

and other work as directed. 
Park Technical Committee members are appointed by   Joe Riley______________________         

The Mayor and the Chair of the Park Commission.    Tom Runge 

             Bill Glampe 

City Code No. 204       

 

Steering Committee 

Comprised of the Chairs of the following three sub-committees 

These sub-committees meet occasionally as directed by the Park Commission and City Council. 

______________________  

______________________ 

______________________ 

 

 

Design  

Studies and makes 

recommendations on issues 

of structure design and 

placement. 

  

Joe Riley (Chair) 

Tom Runge 

Scott Prater 

_____________________ 

 

 

 

 

Management 

Studies and makes 

recommendations on issues 

for managing the City’s 

boat and structure 

guidelines. 

Linda O’Donnell (Chair) 

Jim Cowley 

Joe Riley 

 

 

 

Permit & Legal 

Studies and makes 

recommendations on issues 

dealing with rules for 

managing the boats and 

structures. 
Nicole Runge (Chair) 

Nancy Truax 

Karen Riley  

Kevin Sandstrom 

Linda O’Donnell (Alt) 

 

 



Lower St. Croix River:
A National Wild and Scenic Treasure

Lower St. Croix River: A National Wild and Scenic Treasure  
June 2009

Page 1 of 2

Why was the St. Croix designated a wild and scenic river?

Lower St. Croix 
River (in blue).

Management on segments of the St. Croix includes no-wake zones to lessen 
wave damage to shores and banks and to minimize congestion. 

Scenic easements, zoning, and standards help pre-
serve the scenic views of the St. Croix riverway.

W A S H IN G T O N

DAKOTA

Kinnickinnic SP

!"#94

!"#35

!"#694

!"#494

$%61

$%8

$%10

$%61

&'95

&'97

&'36
&'96

&'35

&'35

&'95

&'95

Stillwater

Taylors

Falls

Osceola

Hudson

Prescott

Forest
Lake

C H IS A G O

W A S H IN G T O N

W
A

S
H

IN
G

T
O

N

R
A

M
S

E
Y

P O LK

S T. C R O IX

S T. C R O IX

P IE R C E

Interstate

SP

Afton SP

William

O’Brien SP

Wild 
and 

Scenic
Lower

St. Croix
River

Interest in protecting rivers for their wild and scenic qualities began in the 1950s
when construction started on the controversial Glen Canyon dam on the Colorado
River. Completed in 1963, the dam created Lake Powell and flooded a spectacu-
larly scenic portion of the river upstream of the Grand Canyon. About that time, 
Northern States Power (NSP) proposed construction of two power plants on the 
St. Croix River. A citizen-based group, “Save the St. Croix,” sought but failed to 
block the first power plant, which started operating in 1968. In the end, NSP built 
just one plant and donated 25,000 acres of upper St. Croix riverfront to Minnesota 
and Wisconsin.

With national interest stirred in protecting scenic rivers, Congress passed the Wilderness Act in 1964 
and the National Wild and Scenic Rivers Act in 1968. The latter act provided immediate protection 
for eight rivers deemed nationally significant, including the upper St. Croix River (above Taylors 
Falls). The act also provided a process to add additional rivers and identified 27 rivers to be studied. 
In 1972, the lower St. Croix River became the tenth river segment in the federal wild and scenic riv-
ers system. The 52-mile segment from Taylors Falls to the confluence with the Mississippi River was 
designated a recreational riverway. The National Park Service manages the river above Taylors Falls, 
while Minnesota, Wisconsin, and the National Park Service cooperatively manage the lower segment. 
The St. Croix is Minnesota’s only river in the federal wild and scenic rivers system.

Today, only 165 rivers in the United States are pro-
tected by the federal wild and scenic river designation. That number 
represents just ¼ of 1 percent of the rivers in our country; more than 
half of the designated rivers are located in the Pacific Northwest and 
Alaska. The presence of the St. Croix River on this exclusive list is 
special and significant.

In 1972, Minnesota enacted the Lower St. Croix Wild and Scenic 
River Act to protect the river and its values. Under this act, the state 
developed rules incorporating standards for minimum lot size, setback 
from water and bluff lines, and approved land uses, as well as specific 
strategies to maintain the unique values of the river. The land use 
regulations are administered through local zoning ordinances. 

How is the St. Croix River protected?

Property owners along the St. Croix are the primary stewards of the river. They are vital to protecting the resources of 
the St. Croix today and for future generations. Protection is accomplished by stewardship efforts and compliance with 
federal, state, and local requirements. Property owners, stakeholders, and conservation organizations have collaborated 
with government agencies to preserve the riverway’s values.  

State standards and local zoning. The St. Croix riverway is protected by a combination of standards, zoning, and 
easements. The land along the St. Croix is classified as urban or rural, and the state developed dimensional standards 
for each district to preserve natural views from the water, control erosion, and protect water quality. These standards are 
administered through local zoning ordinances 
and include lot size and width, structure 
setbacks and height, and sanitary system 
requirements (see diagrams and table, page 
2). Maximum structure height is 35 feet 
for structures conforming to standards, and 
impervious surfaces are limited to 20 percent 
of a lot, including roof, sidewalk, driveways, 
patios, and decks. The color of new or remod-
eled structures must be earth tones or summer 
vegetation tones. 



Local zoning ordinances 
also require permits for 
alterations to the natural 
landscape such as grad-
ing and filling and cut-
ting vegetation. These 
activities are restricted 
within setback areas and 
on slopes greater than 12 
percent. Existing vegeta-
tion must be maintained 
to screen structures from 
view on the river, which 
preserves the scenic 
qualities important to 
the river’s designation. 

Since much of the St. 
Croix’s shoreline is 
already developed, most 
of the pressure involves 
redevelopment propos-
als to expand or raze 
and reconstruct exist-
ing structures. Before 
starting on any project, 
landowners, developers, 
or prospective homebuy-
ers should check with 
the local government 
to ensure that all local 
riverway standards and 
permit requirements are 
met. Generally, recon-
struction or expansion 
of any existing structure 
is limited if it does not 
meet current setback 
standards to protect 
slopes and the natural 
appearance of the river. 
A variance from the 
local government may 
be needed and it may or 
may not be granted.

Scenic easements. The 
National Park Service 
holds most of the scenic 
easements on private 
land in the riverway. 
Landowners or pro-
spective homebuyers 
should be aware of any 
easements on their land 
because proposed rede-
velopment projects must 
comply with the terms 
of those easements. 

Page 2 of 2

Lower St. Croix River: A National Wild and Scenic Treasure

Dimensional standards for setbacks from ordinary high-water level (OHWL) and bluff lines in rural (top) 
and urban (bottom) districts along the St. Croix River. The OHWL setback in a rural district is greater 
than in an urban district. As a result of these setback protections, this depiction shows available space for 
one homesite in the rural district and two in the urban district. The box below cites some other standards 
intended to preserve the qualities of the St. Croix.   

Lower St. Croix River: A National Wild and Scenic Treasure  
June 2009

Other dimensional standards  Rural district  Urban district
Minimum lot size    2.5 acres   1 acre (20,000 sq ft if sewered)
Minimum water frontage   200 feet   150 feet (100 feet if sewered) 
Minimum lot width at building line  200 feet   150 feet (100 feet if sewered)
Maximum structure height   35 feet   35 feet
Maximum area of impervious surface 20 percent  20 percent
Minimum setback, vegetation cutting area 200 ft from OHWL 100 ft from OHWL
     40 ft from bluff line 40 ft from bluff line
Minimum setback, sewage system  200 ft from OHWL 100 ft from OHWL
     40 ft from bluff line 40 ft from bluff line

Contact Information 

DNR Waters in St. Paul: 500 Lafayette Road, Box 32, St. Paul, MN 55155-4032, (651) 259-5700
State Wild and Scenic Rivers information at DNR Waters website: http://mndnr.gov/waters

National Wild and Scenic Rivers information: www.rivers.gov
Lower St. Croix River National Scenic Riverway at National Park Service: www.nps.gov/sacn
Saint Croix National Park in Saint Croix Falls, WI: (715) 483-3284

bluff  line

St. Croix River

channel
main

OHWL

200-ft OHWL setback

not to scale

DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS 

FOR RURAL AREAS
100-ft bluff  line

setback

100-ft bluff  line 
setback

bluff  lines 

DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS 

FOR URBAN AREAS

bluff  line

St. Croix River

channel
main OHWL

100-ft OHWL setback

40-ft 
bluff  line
setback

not to scale

bluff  lines

40-ft 
bluff  line
setback

bluff  line

St. Croix River

channel
main

OHWL

200-ft OHWL setback

not to scale

DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS 

FOR RURAL AREAS
100-ft bluff  line

setback

100-ft bluff  line 
setback

bluff  lines 

DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS 

FOR URBAN AREAS

bluff  line

St. Croix River

channel
main OHWL

100-ft OHWL setback

40-ft 
bluff  line
setback

not to scale

bluff  lines

40-ft 
bluff  line
setback















August 6, 2016 
 
 
Susan Schuler MCMC 
 
Clerk/Administrator 
City of Lake St Croix Beach 
 
 
Good morning Susan. 
 
I hope that you had a very pleasant weekend. 
 
Thank you for spending the time to discuss with me the open Building Official position in your City of 
Lake St Croix Beach.  I understand that you are considering a “contract” Building Official that could 
work in your office two to three days per week, depending upon workload.  I would be very 
interested in such a position and I would like to offer some of my thoughts. 
 
I find your suggestion about having a Building Official that could be in the office during normal 
working hours for two to three days a week to be beneficial to both the city staff and to all of the 
residents that will be able to actually spend some time chatting with the Building Official about their 
ideas or concerns.  Having an office in City Hall will also provide the Building Official with a space to 
work on building plan reviews in between other functions such as inspections, zoning issues and 
other projects as assigned. 
 
As a contract person, such as myself, if given this opportunity, I would be able to fulfill some other 
teaching commitments that I have scheduled (architect lunch & learn programs around the Twin 
Cities) and a few full-day educational programs that I will be presenting at the Roseville office of the 
Builders Association of the Twin Cities (BATC) later this fall. 
 
During our phone conversation I mentioned that I have been attending the national I-Code hearings 
that will be the basis for the 2018 International Building Code, 2018 International Residential Code, 
and 2018 International Energy Conservation Code, to name a few.  During the hearings I am 
speaking for the National Association of Home Builders (NAHB) and I will be attending one more 
week of code hearings that take place between October 17th and October 21st in Kansas City, MO.  I 
am placing a link here of a nine minute video clip taken during the last hearings in Louisville, KY that 
kinds of shows what I have  been doing during these hearings.  My assignment ends with NAHB after 
the October hearings are completed. 
 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=dnzy9_fT2dg  

 
I have an extensive knowledge of residential and commercial building codes, energy codes and 
green building practices.  I have previously worked on staff with the International Code Council 
(ICC), the State of Minnesota Department of Labor and Industry Construction Codes and Licensing 
Division (DLI) and as a Building Inspector for eleven years with the City of Blaine.  I have taught 
building code and energy code programs for building inspectors, builders, and designers during the 
two decades.  I have written six published books on building codes, energy codes and green building 
codes and standards.  

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=dnzy9_fT2dg


 
Recently I completed a six-month contract position with the City of Golden Valley Building 
Inspection Department as a Building Plans Examiner where I worked on assigned plans for new 
single-family homes, one proposed apartment building and a multitude of residential additions and 
remodeling plans. I also covered the building permit counter during the lunch hour assisting the 
local residents with their inquiries and ideas about future remodeling.  
 
I have been told by others that I am very dependable and a good person to work with.  I will send 
along a copy of biography and personal references. 
 
So I would like to propose the following for your consideration. 
 
First, because I would be working in your office during the day, it would give me the opportunity to 
work on building plans in between other assignments, thus, there would be no percentage of 
building permit fee or building plan review fee for my services as is often quoted by contract full-
service inspection companies. 
 
I propose an hourly rate of $ 79.00 (seventy nine dollars) per hour from when I arrive at city hall to 
the time I depart city hall.  As a contract service, I will be responsible for paying my own federal tax, 
state tax, social security tax, retirement, etc., out of that $ 79.00.  I carry a two million dollar 
business liability policy and I can provide that upon request. 
 
I am open to using my own vehicle or a city vehicle for city assignments.  
 
I would suggest that if I am to travel a lot during the day that the city provide me with a business cell 
phone that I can leave at the office when not on assignment. 
 
I appreciate the idea of using the prior Building Official’s office, computer, office phone, etc. 
 
Please consider this a draft document and edit as needed.  Thank you again Sue for your time and 
consideration. 
 
Kindest regards, 
 

Peter Kulczyk 
 
PO Box 490304 
Blaine, MN 55449 
 
Pkulczyk1063@gmail.com 
Office phone  763.205.9293 
Cell phone      763.267.1139 
www.greencodeknowledge.com 
 

 

mailto:Pkulczyk1063@gmail.com
http://www.greencodeknowledge.com/


 



  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF LAKE ST CROIX BEACH 
Attention: Susan Schuler 

Administrator-Clerk 
16455 20th Street South 

Lake St Croix Beach, MN 55043 

 
 
 

Building Inspection Services Proposal 
 
 

SUBMITTED BY: 

MNSPECT, LLC 
235 First Street West 
Waconia, MN  55387 

Office Phone (952) 442-7520 
Toll Free (888) 446-1801 

Fax (952) 442-7521 
www.mnspect.com 

Scott Qualle, President 
Mobile Phone (763) 458-6926 
E-Mail – scott@mnspect.com 

 
September 6, 2016 

 
 

mailto:scott@mnspect.com


- 2 -  
 

 
MNSPECT COMPANY BACKGROUND 
 
Since 1987, MNSPECT has been providing comprehensive Designated Building Official and 
Supplemental/As-Needed Building Safety services for Minnesota communities.  MNSPECT’s highly-
qualified, certified, and experienced team of Building Officials currently provides services for 21 
communities, performing more than 8000 inspections, issuing almost 2000 permits and performing 
more than 600 plan reviews during calendar year 2015. 
 
MNSPECT LLC was formed in 2010.  MNSPECT Inc., the predecessor company to MNSPECT LLC, was 
incorporated in 1987 and was originally named Paul Waldron and Associates Limited. 
 
MNSPECT’s many years of successful service to the communities we serve extends to all activities 
related to the administration and enforcement of the Minnesota State Codes for Accessibility, Building, 
Electrical, Energy, Fire, Fuel Gas, Industrialized/Modular Buildings, Manufactured Homes, Mechanical, 
Plumbing, and Prefabricated Buildings. 
 
In addition to executing designated Building Official duties, we perform services related to sediment 
and erosion control enforcement, rental license and property maintenance inspections, zoning 
ordinance enforcement, fire safety inspections, and commercial plumbing plan review. 
 
The State of Minnesota demonstrates its confidence in our staff’s qualifications and competencies by 
granting us approval to provide these specialized services: 
 
1. Administration of the State Building Code on ‘Public Buildings’ and ‘State Licensed Facilities’ 
granting the authority to perform all plan review and inspections on public buildings and State licensed 
facilities. This special authority ensures all permit revenue for these projects of large magnitude stay 
with the community instead of going to the State. 
 
2. Approval from the Minnesota Department of Labor and Industry, Plumbing Plan Review and 
Inspections Unit to perform plumbing plan review on plumbing systems that serve the public. 
 
3. Approval from the Minnesota Department of Public Safety, State Fire Marshal Division, to 
perform plan review and inspections on fire suppression systems and fire alarm systems. 
 
4. Approval from the Minnesota Department of Public Safety, State Fire Marshal Division, to      
perform State required fire inspections on Minnesota Department of Human Services licensed 
facilities. 
 
5.  Approval for MNSPECT President and Chief Certified Building Official to teach the Code to 
contractors and other Building Officials. 
 
 



- 3 -  
 

MNSPECT partners with communities to provide a high level of service for homeowners, building 
owners, contractors, and municipal staff.  We work to exceed community goals and standards of 
service.  We are recognized for our expert knowledge of Minnesota Building Codes, our helpful and 
professional approach, our commitment to timely service and communication, and our focus on code 
education, as our formula for success. 
 
MNSPECT’S comprehensive Plan Review, utilizing a detailed checklist, combined with our 
knowledgeable inspectors working with property owners, builders and contractors, often saves time 
and money in the construction process. 
 
MNSPECT provides exceptional value by providing our partner communities with the right sized staff, 
the right service skill set, and the right experience all at the right time – with a positive impact on 
budget bottom lines. 
 
MNSPECT provides a seamless, professional, trouble free, and reliable integration and transition from 
your current building official. 
 
MNSPECT’s licensing credentials, qualifications, and insurance coverage exceed minimum 
requirements. 
 
MNSPECT staff consists of: 1.  Ten (10) Code Enforcement personnel 
    2.  Five (5) Administrative personnel 
 
 
 
MNSPECT PERSONNEL 

 
Scott Qualle, President/Designated Building Official  
 MN Certified Building Official BO002643  
 ICC Certified Building Official 
 MN Certified Fire Inspector I 
 MN delegate for Public Building 
 MN delegate for State Licensed Facilities 
 Statutory Warranty Dispute Resolution 

Neutral (mediator) 
 Erosion/Sediment Control Installer, 

Inspector, and Site Manager 
 MN Foster/Daycare Fire Inspector 

 MN Approved Continuing Education 
Instructor 

 Building Inspection Technology (BIT) 
Certificate 

 Associate in Applied Science Degree, BIT 
 Associate in Applied Science Degree, 

Accounting 
 Bachelor of Science Degree, Business 
 Master’s Degree in Business 

Administration (MBA) 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



- 4 -  
 

Inspection Personnel 
Ty Turnquist 
Operations Director/Senior Commercial Plans 
Examiner 

 MN Certified Building Official BO002901 
 Backflow Prevention Tester  BT068839 
 Building Inspection Technology Certification 
 Erosion and Sediment Control Regulatory 
   Enforcement Certificate 
 Erosion/Sediment Control Installer, Inspector, 
    and Site Manager Certification 
 MN Approved Continuing Education Instructor 
 MN Foster/Daycare Fire Inspector 

 
Nick Qualle  
Senior Residential Plans Examiner/Field Inspector 

 MN Certified Building Official  BO002752 
 Building Inspection Technology Certification  
 Erosion/Sediment Control Installer, Inspector, 
    and Site Manager Certification 
 MN Approved Continuing Education Instructor 

 
Derek Qualle 
Residential Field Inspector/Rental Housing 
Inspector 
     Limited Building Official   LBO705817 
     Erosion/Sediment Control Installer, Inspector, 
        and Site Manager Certification 
 
Dale Engelmann  
Senior Plumbing Plans Examiner/Plumbing 
Inspector 

 MN Approved Commercial Plumbing Plans 
    Examiner 
 Master Plumber  PM062282  

 
Steven Maki  
Field Inspector  
     MN Certified Building Official  BO002079 
     Building Inspection Technology Certificate 
      Associate in Applied Science Degree, BIT 
     Hazardous Material Certification CFR  49, IATA 
 
 
 

Administrative Personnel 
Kandis Hanson 
Relationship Manager 

 Associates of Applied Science Degree 
 Bachelor of Science Degree 

       Masters of Arts Degree 
 
Tracy Montgomery 
Officer Manager 

 Bachelor of Science Degree 
 
Wendy Morrissey 
Administrative Assistant 

 Bachelor of Arts Degree  
  

Brandy Blauert 
Operations Assistant 

 Bachelor of Arts Degree  
 
Tamara Stuart  
Administrative Assistant 
        Bachelor of Arts Degree 
 
 
Contract Personnel 
Dave Hucky  
Electric Inspector 
     MN State Electrical Inspector 
     Member, International Association of 
Electrical 
        Inspectors 
     Master Electrician  AM004736 
 
Dean Mau  
Senior Fire Plans Examiner 

 MN Certified Building Official  BO002730 
 ICC Certified Building Official  
 ICC Certified Fire Marshal 
 ICC Certified Fire Code Official  
 ICC Certified Fire Plans Examiner 
 ICC Certified Fire Inspector II 
 IFSAC Certified Fire Inspector II and III 
 MN Certified Fire Inspector – III 
 MN Certified Fire Fighter – II 
 Certified Fire Fighter – V (Industrial) 



- 5 -  
 

 
 
Steven Horsman 
Combination Field Inspector 
    MN Certified Building Official  BO001981 
    Associate Applied Science Degree 
    Building Inspection Technology Certificate 
          International Fire Code Certificate 
    Incident Command Systems/FEMA ICS Certif 
    International Mechanical Code Certification 
    Zoning Administration Certification 
 
Ermias Mekonnen 
Plans Examiner   
     Bachelor of Applied Science 
     Bachelor of Science - Architecture 
     Building Inspection Technology Certification 
     Qualifying Building License   QB673913 
     OSHA-10 Certification 

 

 
 
 
SUMMARY OF PROPOSED SERVICES 
 
MNSPECT will serve as the City of Lake St Croix Beach’s Designated Building Official.  MNSPECT will 
perform administrative and enforcement services related to the Minnesota State Building Code as 
directed in MN Rules Chapter 1300, fire suppression and alarm systems (MN State Fire Code), and any 
additional services requested by the City of Lake St Croix Beach.  This includes, but is not limited to, 
assisting the City in such activities as permit submission, plan review, permit issuance, scheduling, field 
inspections, construction meetings, record keeping, code interpretations, answering questions, 
attending meetings, and providing information to the public. 
 
1. General   

 Reviews permit applications, plans and materials to ensure they are consistent with codes 
and approved plans. 
MNSPECT reviews the building construction plans and site plans for conformance with the 
Building Code and applicable City ordinances, and approves or rejects same. 
 

 Inspects all types of structures, signs, grading and erosion control installations for consistency 
with codes and approved plans and conditions. 
MNSPECT performs all required inspections and notifies the Permit Holder of any violations and 
of final approval.  MNSPECT Inspectors utilize an inspection checklist for consistency and quality 
control. 
 
 



- 6 -  
 

Required inspection functions may include: 
 Site 
 Insulation 
 Footing 
 Foundation 
 Pre-backfill/foundation 

waterproofing 
 Concrete slab/under floor 
 Plumbing rough-in 
 Heat/mechanical rough-in 
 Gas line pressure test 
 Fire suppression systems rough-in 
 Fire alarm rough-in 
 Accessibility rough-in 

 Framing 
 Lath 
 Gypsum/wall board 
 Fire-resistive assemblies 
 Fire caulking 
 Fire suppression systems final 
 Fire alarm systems final 
 Heat/mechanical final 
 Plumbing final 
 Accessibility final 
 Building final 
 Authorize Certificate of Occupancy 

 
 Issues Certificates of Occupancy. 

MNSPECT creates the Certificate of Occupancy at permit issuance and approves and sends it to 
the City with the final inspection notice. City Staff issues the Certificate of Occupancy to the 
permit holder upon final City approval and when consistent with any additional City 
requirements. 
 

 Conducts inspections for housing code compliance. 
At the request of the City, MNSPECT will promptly investigates complaints related to health, 
safety, or other housing code violations. 
 

 Investigates complaints to determine whether code violations exist. 
When MNSPECT is made aware of a code violation (whether by personal observation, resident 
complaint or City notice), we promptly investigate the concern or complaint and work with the 
City to mitigate the issue. 
 

 Issues correction orders when violations persist. 
Should normal inspection protocols fail to achieve compliance, MNSPECT issues orders such as 
Stop Work Orders and Do Not Occupy notices, as required.  MNSPECT works with City staff and 
the City Attorney in order to resolve persistent violations. 
 

 Establishes valuations of the construction costs and determines permit fees. 
MNSPECT strives to determine valuations fairly and consistently for all applicants.  For determining 
the permit valuation, the Building Official will use the applicant-supplied valuation with a minimum 
value as calculated by the current Building Valuation Data Table, published each May by the 
Department of Labor and Industry and by other data, as needed, for projects not otherwise 
specified.  Once valuations have been established, MNSPECT calculates permit fees as specified by 
City ordinance in the building permit fee schedule. 



 

- 7 -  
 

 
 Interprets and explains city ordinances and state codes to homeowners, architects, engineers, 

contractors and developers. 
MNSPECT answers any questions from construction stakeholders regarding the City and State 
building codes and ordinances and helps all parties understand the issues to the best of our 
ability. Our company motto is “Helping you comply with the Code.” 
 

 Verifies contractor licensing. 
Pursuant to MN Statute 326B.85, upon receipt of every building permit application where a 
contractor is required by MN Statute 326B.805 to be licensed, MNSPECT verifies that the 
contractor’s license and lead certification is valid and current. 
 

 Provides information responding to questions regarding codes, city building procedures. 
MNSPECT’s inspectors perform all required field inspections and investigate and respond in a 
timely manner to constituent/stakeholder’s questions and concerns. 
 
MNSPECT has a wide variety of informational handouts ranging from “Choosing a Contractor” 
to “New Home Construction.”  We strive to respond to code-related phone calls the same day.  
Prior to the beginning of our service, we will meet with City staff to discuss any City procedures 
of which we should be aware. 
 
We use personal, written, electronic, and telephonic methods to communicate with 
constituents. In addition, a toll-free phone number and an email address (info@mnspect.com) 
are available for building code questions.  We will maintain regular and open communication 
with City staff and Council, working closely with them in order to discuss and draft appropriate 
responses to constituent questions and concerns.  
 
MNSPECT Building Officials, live or via video conferencing, are available during business hours 
to assist homeowners, building owners, contractors and other stakeholders to answer 
questions, review plans, and meet with City staff and the public. 
 
As requested, MNSPECT personnel will make presentations on relevant topics. We have extensive 
experience and a vast resource library of information at our disposal for preparing and delivering 
brief presentations, short talks, and all-day seminars on many aspects of the building inspections 
process, code changes, or other topics of concern and interest. 
 
MNSPECT will provide recommendations to Staff and City Council regarding constituent 
requests and issues in accordance with the building code, City codes, ordinances, fee schedules, 
and other established processes. 
 
MNSPECT has prepares and distributes the monthly newsletter, The MNSPECT Minute, which 
containis relevant and timely topics regarding the building process, state codes, and safety 
issues. 
 

mailto:info@mnspect.com


 

- 8 -  
 

 Communicates observed violations of other city codes to the appropriate person. 
Upon discovery of a violation in the City, the inspector communicates with the appropriate City 
staff. 
 

 Reviews and recommends amendments to city code. 
If selected, we will review the City of Lake St Croix Beach’s codes and ordinances.  We will make 
recommendations for possible changes or updates.  When requested, we will attend meetings 
to create or revise local ordinances as they relate to the administration or other duties of the 
Department of Building Safety. 
 

 Creates and maintains logs, records and reports and disseminates them to the appropriate 
person/entities. 
We use software to track permit activity.  The permit information is entered when the permit 
application is received and data entry continues until project completion. We scan and 
electronically retain inspection notices and applications, as well as copies of all correspondence 
regarding permit activity and property maintenance and housing code complaints.  MNSPECT 
provides robust reporting of permits, permit activity, permit status, inspections, permit revenue 
fees and charges.  We concisely organize and present key data in electronic format. 
 

 Researches new products and methods used in construction. 
When new materials or methods are proposed, we will research and approve as appropriate.  We 
consult the Department of Labor and Industry to interpret the MN Building Code and resolve 
disagreements about whether new products and methods comply with the Building Code.  We take a 
proactive approach to identifying, researching, reviewing and developing appropriate positions 
on new products and construction methods. 
 

 Maintains state certifications and keeps current with changes and innovation in construction 
techniques and materials.  Attends job-related training to keep current on laws, code and 
regulations and/or related changes to the Code. 
All MNSPECT Building Official and Code Enforcement personnel meet or exceed all state 
required certifications.  Certified Building Officials must receive at least 19 hours of continuing 
education each year to maintain their certification.  In addition, our inspectors assist in the 
development of code-related continuing education courses taught by MNSPECT. 
 
 

2. City meetings 
 Attends internal and external meetings involving building code and inspection questions and 

issues. 
MNSPECT will attend all internal and external meetings involving code and inspection questions 
and issues and will come prepared to address those issues. 



 

- 9 -  
 

 
 Acts as City liaison and City representative with other communities and entities including 

local, county, state and federal agencies in areas of responsibility. 
As the City’s Designated Building Official, MNSPECT will serve as Lake St Croix Beach’s liaison 
and will communicate with other communities, and with all local, county, state and federal 
agencies and stakeholders as needed in that capacity. 
 

 Attends City Council and/or other City meetings as necessary. 
Whenever necessary, MNSPECT will attend City Council meetings, City staff meetings, 
preconstruction meetings, or special meetings to discuss issues involving the building code or 
our services.   
 
 

COMPENSATION 
 
1.   Fee Schedule 

 If selected, MNSPECT will use the fee schedule currently adopted by the City of Lake St Croix 
Beach.  MNSPECT may recommend fee schedule changes to City Staff and the City Council over 
time. 

 We utilize the most current State-supplied valuation table to calculate valuations. 
 
2.   Proposed Service Fees 

 Residential  85% of Permit and Plan Review Fee per City Schedule  
 Commercial  85% of Permit and Plan Review Fee per City Schedule 
 Industrial  85% of Permit and Plan Review Fee per City Schedule 
 Re-Inspection  100% of reinspection fee 
 Hourly   $65.00 * 
 Additional Services - Because of the nuances and complexities of local ordinances for rental 

licensing, property maintenance, and commercial fire safety inspections, we propose the 
following: After gaining a full understanding, the parties will negotiate. 

 All items not specified in the City’s Fee Schedule will be hourly as a default.  However, once we 
better understand the City’s needs, the fees for such services can be negotiated as a part of our 
contract with the City of Lake St Croix Beach. 

 Reimbursable Expenses - The City of shall reimburse MNSPECT 100% of all preapproved travel, 
accommodations, meals, event attendance fees, and materials for all ‘special circumstance’ 
event attendance the City requires MNSPECT to attend and/or participate in.  

 
*Inspections for which no fee is indicated, miscellaneous and special services. 

 
3.   Billing 

 MNSPECT uses a monthly billing cycle, wherein compensation for proposed services is based on 
that month’s processed permit applications and other performed services. 

 We are open to discussing other billing methods as the City may request. 
 



 

- 10 -  
 

4.   Contract Term 
 MNSPECT proposes a three year contract term.  The contract can be terminated, by either 

party, on 30 days written notice, for cause. 
 
 
CURRENT PUBLIC CLIENTS & REFERENCES 
 
City of Bayport – Aug 2016 – present       Pop. 3767 
294 3rd Street North, Bayport, MN  55003 
Logan Martin, Administrator (651) 275-4404 
 
Castle Rock Township – Jun 2009 – present      Pop. 1,495 
2537 240th St W, Farmington, MN 55024   
Barb Lang, Clerk    (651) 460-2221   
 
Douglas Township – Jan 2011 – present Pop. 760  
PO Box 151,Hampton, MN 55031   
Peggy Varien, Clerk   (651) 769-5061   
 
City of Eagan (backup) – Nov 2013 – present Pop. 65,453  
3830 Pilot Knob Rd, Eagan, MN 55122   
Dale Schoeppner, Building Official   (651) 675-5675   
 
City of Glencoe – Mar 1991 - present Pop. 5,631  
1107 11th St E, Ste. 107, Glencoe, MN 55336   
Mark Larson, Administrator   (320) 864-5586   
 
Greenvale Township – Jan 2012 – present Pop. 684  
31800 Guam Ave, Northfield, MN 55057   
Greg Langer, Board Chair                     (507) 649-2376   
 
City of Hamburg – Jun 1989 – present Pop. 513 
181 Broadway, Hamburg, MN 55339    
Jeremy Gruenhagen, Clerk                     (952) 467-3232   
 
City of Hampton – Apr 2010 – present Pop. 689  
PO Box 128, Hampton, MN 55031   
Wendy Carpenter, Clerk                     (651) 437-8846   
 
City of Lakeland                                                                 Pop. 1,814 
1190 St. Croix Trail South, Lakeland, MN 55043 
Sandie Thone, Administrator                                  (651) 436-4430 
 
City of Lakeland Shores                                                    Pop. 312 
PO Box 246, Lakeland, MN 55043 
Sandie Thone, Administrator                                   (651) 436-4430 
 



 

- 11 -  
 

City of Lake St Croix Beach (interim)               Pop. 1055 
16455 20th Street South, Lake St Croix Beach, MN 
Sue Schuler, Administrator-Clerk    (651) 436-7031 
 
City of Lester Prairie – Mar 1997 – present 
PO Box 66     Pop. 1,730 
Lester Prairie, MN 55354 
Marilyn Pawelk, Clerk    (320) 395-2646 
 
City of New Hope (backup) – Feb 2016     Pop. 20,812  
4401 Xylon Ave North, New Hope, MN  55428 
Roger Axel, Building Official    (763) 531-5100 
 
City of Hutchinson (backup) – Aug 2011     Pop. 14,178 
111 Hassan St SE, Hutchinson, MN  55350      
Matt Jaunich, Administrator                  (320) 587-5151 
 
City of Mound – Jan 2003 – present     Pop. 9,052 
2415 Wilshire Blvd, Mound, MN 55364 
Sarah Smith, Community Development Director     (952) 472-0604 
Greg Pederson, Fire Chief     (952) 472-3533 
 
City of Plato – Jan 1994 – present     Pop. 320 
PO Box 7, Plato, MN 55370 
Gerri Scott, Clerk                   (320) 238-2432 
 
Scott County (backup) – July 2016                                   Pop. 137,232 
200 4th Ave West, Shakopee, MN  55379  
Jeff Munsterteiger, Building Official     (952)496-8100 
 
City of Shorewood (backup) – Jan 2006 – present     Pop. 7,533 
5755 Country Club Rd, Shorewood, MN 55331 
Joe Pazandak, Building Official     (952) 474-3236 
 
City of Silver Lake – Apr 1994 – present     Pop. 837 
308 Main St W, Silver Lake, MN 55381 
Kerry Venier, Clerk     (320) 327-2412 
 
City of Spring Park – May 2008 – present     Pop. 1,669  
4349 Warren Ave, Spring Park, MN 55384   
Dan Tolsma, Administrator     (952) 471-9051   
 
City of Stewart – Sep 2008 – present                                Pop. 571   
PO Box 195, Stewart, MN 55385   
Ronda Huls, Clerk     (320) 562-2518   



 

- 12 -  
 

 
Waterford Township – April 2014 – present     Pop. 517 
PO Box 531, Northfield, MN 55057 
Liz Messner, Board Member     (507) 663-1096 

 
 
INTERESTS & AFFILIATIONS 
 
MNSPECT has an interest in or affiliation with: 

Welcome Home Inspections (WHI) – MNSPECT is the parent company of Welcome Home 
Inspections.  WHI performs point of sale inspections for prospective home buyers.  Several 
MNSPECT personnel are involved with WHI.   
 
Wall Bracing Code Verification Services (WBCVS) – This service assists builders and designers by 
confirming that wall bracing plans meet the submittal requirements of the MN State Residential 
Code and local jurisdictions administering the code. 
 
MNSPECT Continuing Education – MNSPECT is engaged in teaching codes and statutes to 
contractors, building officials, and other licensed professionals.  MNSPECT Continuing Education 
has the direct experience and demonstrated expertise required to impart appropriate and related 
knowledge in the applicable construction codes.   
 
We believe that the code should be understood by all those responsible for designing, constructing, 
or inspecting to its requirements. 
 
 
 

 MNSPECT certifies its ability to provide the services requested by the City of Lake St Croix Beach. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________     
Scott Qualle, President                          




































































































































































































	CC 9-19-16 A
	AGENDA

	Item 4.A - Council Meeting 8-15-16 Minutes
	Item 6.A - August 2016 Beach Citations
	Item 6.A - ICR Report
	Local Disk
	file:///lscbsrv1/LSCB%20shared/Council%20Meetings%20and%20Agendas/2016/2016%20Council%20Packets/9-19-16/ICR%20Report.txt


	Item 6.B - Kevin Wall
	Item 6.C - Animal Control Report
	Item 7.B - Minnesota Government Access Login
	Item 7.B - Statute-- Temporary Family Health Care Dwellings
	Item 7.C - LSCV Minutes (2)
	Item 7.C - Park Commission Subcommittees 2016
	Item 7.C - Sue Report  - lower_st_croix_brochure (1)
	Item 7.C Sept Claims
	Item 8.A - Kulczyk proposal for Lake St Croix Beach_6_August_2016
	Item 8.A - MNSpect Proposal
	Item 8.B - Bush CUP - Map
	Item 8.B - C - 9-7-17 PC Meeting Materials
	CUP IUP Administrators Report Bush
	Final CUP Documents Bush
	Final IUP Bush
	Final Jacobs Variance

	CC 9-19-16 A.pdf
	AGENDA




